UNITED
NATIONS CAT

: : Distr.
Convention against Torture CENERAL
and Other_CrueI, Inhuman AT/ & SR 276
or Degrading Treatment 25 Novenber 1996
or Punishment Original: ENGLISH

COW TTEE AGAI NST TORTURE
Sevent eent h sessi on
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 276t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 20 Novenber 1996, at 10.30 a.m

Chai rman: M. DI PANDA MOUELLE

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Second periodic report of Poland
ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menmorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 96-19179 (E)



CAT/ C/ SR 276
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.45 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (agenda item 4) (continued)

Second periodic report of Poland (CAT/ C 25/ Add. 9)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Kuzniar, M. Dzialuk and
Ms. Kowal czyk (Poland) took places at the Conmittee table.

2. M. KUZNI AR (Pol and) said that the second periodic report of Poland
(CAT/ T 25/ Add. 9) reflected the inportance his country attached to the
eradi cation of torture and other cruel, inhuman or degrading treatnment or
puni shient .

3. Foll owi ng the Conmittee's consideration of the initial report of Poland,
(CAT/ 9/ Add. 13), changes had been nmade to the relevant Polish legislation in
the last two years and were described in the report. He hoped that today's
neeting woul d enabl e further inprovenents to be nmade in Polish | egislation
concerning the adm nistration of justice and the prison system

4, He drew attention to a suppl enentary report recently prepared by the
M nistry of Justice updating the information contained in the second periodic
report.

5. M. DZI ALUK (Pol and) apol ogi zed for the | ate subm ssion of the
suppl enentary report referred to by M. Kuzniar, which would be circulated to
nmenbers of the Committee. It set out recent devel opnents in the Polish | ega

system and contained statistical data up to Novenber 1996.

6. The question of incorporating a definition of torture into Poland's
donestic | egislation had been raised by the Committee in its coments on the
initial report of Poland. Although there had been no substantial change in
the situation, the supplenentary report showed that a theoretical third | eve
of protection was granted under the Polish Penal Code and other |egislation
For historical reasons Poland was reluctant to include formal definitions in
its penal codes. Instead acts were punished on the basis of their physica
consequences, and the argunents in the supplenmentary report night well |ead
the Conmittee to conclude that any act that might be classified as torture
under article 1 of the Convention was adequately covered by the provisions of
crimnal law. Mreover, mgjor changes to the Penal Code, the Code of Crinmina
Procedure and the Penal Executive Code had been submitted to Parlianment

in 1995. It was hoped that, before the next periodic report fell due in 1998,
t he necessary parliamentary procedures woul d have been carried out and the

| egi sl ation would be in force.

7. The sane applied to the legislation relevant to article 2.

Unfortunately, the legislative provisions referred to in the second periodic
report, which had been prepared sone two years before, had not been adopted by
Parliament, but prima facie they did not affect the rights of a victim of
torture.

8. Anot her issue referred to by the Conmittee was that of the death
penalty. Poland formally retained capital punishnent under the 1969 Pena
Code, which was still in force although significantly anended. In the new

draft Penal Code the death penalty would be replaced by inprisonment for life
or for terms of 25 to 35 years. However, that provision was being contested
and a majority of the public were in favour of retaining capital punishment.
Neverthel ess a five-year |egal noratoriumon the carrying-out of the death
sentence had come into force in Novenber 1995, which was considered as a step
towards the conplete abolition of capital punishnent. Moreover, at present
there was no one in a Polish prison awaiting capital punishnment. His
CGovernnment's position was that after the expiry of the noratorium new



CAT/ C/ SR 276
page 3

| egi sl ati on abolishing the death penalty would be in force. As appendix 6 of
the suppl ementary report showed, between 1990 and 1995 the annual nunber of
sentences of capital punishnent had ranged fromnone to four, and all of them
had been reversed on appeal

9. In July 1995 a major amendment to the Code of Crimnal Procedure had
been adopted, and part of it had entered into force in August 1996. That

provi sion gave sole authority to the courts to decide on arrest pending a
trial

10. The Conmittee had rai sed several points in connection with internationa
cooperation in crimnal matters. Since the subnission of its initial report,
Pol and had becone a party to a nunber of international treaties, including the
Eur opean Convention on Extradition of 1957, the Agreement on the Transfer of
Foreign Prisoners, and the Convention on the Application of Standards of the

Counci| for Mitual Economi c Assistance. It had also concluded bilatera
treaties with sone of its neighbours, including Belarus, Latvia, Lithuania,
t he Russi an Federation and Wkraine in order to fill gaps caused by probl ens of

St at e successi on

11. The suppl enmentary report contained prelimnary statistics on requests
for extradition and “wanted” notices sent to Poland, mainly through | NTERPCL
So far no request for extradition had been refused on the grounds of article 2
of the Convention, but one case was pending in which direct references to
article 3 of the European Convention on the Protection of Human Ri ghts and
Fundanent al Freedons and article 2 of the Convention were likely to be made.

12. The question of the place of international |egal provisions in Poland s
donestic | egal system had al so been raised by the Conmittee. He confirmed
that the place of international provisions in Polish |aw was no | onger in
guestion. However, what was |acking was a constitutional provision confirmng
that position. It was expected that the new draft Constitution would be ready
before the next parlianmentary elections to be held by the autum of 1997. Al
five pieces of major draft |egislation that were pending confirmed that the

i nternational provisions ratified by Pol and ranked equally with constitutiona
or statutory provisions. Thus the definition of torture in article 1 of the
Convention would be part of the Polish | egal system ex proprio vigore and
there woul d be no need to introduce it by means of a statute.

13. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the del egation of Poland for the val uable
information it had provided. |t was, however, unfortunate that the suppl enent

toits report had only just been submitted and had not yet been circulated to
all nenbers of the Commttee, since it night have obviated the need for sone
of the questions that the experts would be asking the del egation

14. Speaki ng as Country Rapporteur, he requested a brief account of how the
judicial systemin Poland was organi zed, how judges were recruited and what
t he procedure was for disnissing them

15. Begi nning with the core docunent on Pol and (HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 25), he
referred to paragraph 25, in which it was stated that justice in Poland was
di spensed by the Suprene Court, the ordinary courts and the emergency courts.
VWhat was neant by “emergency courts”? Paragraph 26 of the core docunent
stated that judges were appointed by the President on the nomi nation of the
Nati onal Judicial Council. What was the conposition of that Council? And
were its decisions binding on the President?

16. In the second periodic report (CAT/C/ 25/ Add.9), paragraph 3 provided

i nformation on physical violence commtted against minors in reformatories and
children's shelters. He asked whether Poland' s |egislation allowed the use of
physical force against minors or, for that matter, against adults. Had there
been any inspections to nmonitor the use of physical force in Poland s prisons?



CAT/ C/ SR 276
page 4

17. Paragraph 5 of the second periodic report cited the case of a child
whose nose had been broken in an incident involving an instructor. How had
the instructor been puni shed?

18. Paragraph 8 referred to “unl awful behavi our towards detainees”. Could
the Polish del egation explain what was neant by that? Did it involve the use
of force? And, if so, was such use of force allowed under Polish |egislation?

19. Concerning article 2 of the Convention, it was not clear whether in
Pol and the orders of a superior could be invoked to justify the use of
torture.

20. Wth regard to article 4, the delegation had stated that internationa
conventions and Polish donestic |law were on an equal footing and that it was

t heref ore unnecessary to incorporate a definition of torture into domestic
law. He disagreed; as he saw i1t, no provisions of Polish Iegislation punished
the crime of torture as such. The Comittee wanted specific data on that

of fence. Wthout a specific definition of torture under Polish law, it would
be difficult for the authorities to provide the Conmittee with statistics on
torture, namely, acts which caused severe physical or nental pain or
suffering, as defined in article 1 of the Convention

21. As to article 6 of the Convention, paragraph 35 of the second periodic
report spoke of the “draft new Code of Criminal Procedure”. He sought further
clarification on the new code, while pointing out that the Commttee preferred
to discuss legislation only after it had been adopted.

22. In connection with articles 12 and 13 of the Convention, he asked for
nore information on donestic |egislation which facilitated the inplenmentation
of those articles, in particular concerning pronpt investigation of

al l egations and the protection of persons claimng to have been victinms of
torture. Al so had any officials been prosecuted for torture? And were any
statistics available on that subject?

23. Turning to article 14, he inquired whether the State assuned liability
for paying conpensation to victins in cases in which the perpetrators of
torture were financially unable to do so.

24, M. YAKOVLEV (Alternate Country Rapporteur) said that he was pleased to
wel cone the del egation of free and denocratic Pol and and was | ooking forward

to receiving the new Penal Code and Code of Criminal Procedure referred to in
t he second periodic report.

25. Noting that it was in pre-trial detention that torture was nost likely
to occur and that under the new Code of Criminal Procedure arrested persons
had the right to | odge a conplaint with the court, he asked whether, if such a
conpl aint was not forthcom ng, the court would intervene when it considered
such action necessary. Was it possible to challenge the grounds given for the
arrest? Did those arrested appear in court in person? Wre they entitled to
see a counsel for the defence? Did an arrested person have access to a | awer
as soon as he was arrested, or only after the prelimnary investigation, as
had been the case in the forner Soviet Union? He also inquired whether the
new Penal Code nade provision for habeas corpus and for trial by jury, and
whet her the accused had the right to refuse to give evidence.

26. He asked the del egation of Poland whether it could provide statistics on
t he nunber of persons currently in pre-trial detention or serving prison
terms. Wyuld the new Penal Code nmake evi dence obtai ned under torture

i nadmi ssi bl e?

27. He sought further clarification on how Poland dealt with contradictions
bet ween international agreements which it had ratified and donestic
| egi slation. Paragraph 1 of the supplenent provided by the del egation stated



CAT/ C/ SR 276
page 5

t hat Pol and was bound by international agreenments, whose provisions nmust be
applied directly, without need to amend the rel evant provisions of domestic
legislation “if the norms of the international agreenent are of self-executing
character”. He inquired what the difference was between such nornms and ones
that were not of self-executing character, who deci ded whet her they were or
were not, and on the basis of what criteria.

28. He wi shed to ask the del egation a question about Poland's initial report
(CAT/ 9/ Add. 13). According to part Il, paragraph 5, of that report, the
Pol i ce Act recognized that a policeman who conmitted a forbidden act in the
execution of an order or instruction did not conmit an offence unless he was
aware that, by agreeing to execute the order or instruction, he was conmitting
an office. To his mnd, that was at variance with the basic principle of
crimnal law that ignorance of the | aw was no excuse. Furthernore, article 2,
paragraph 3, of the Convention specifically stated that an order froma
superior officer or a public authority could not be invoked as a justification
of torture. He asked the del egation of Poland to conment.

29. Turning to the second periodic report, he noted that paragraph 9
referred to the conviction of 10 forner prison officers for unlawful behaviour
towards detainees. That was rather vague. Could the Polish delegation
speci fy what that behavi our had entail ed?

30. Par agraph 10 of the second periodic report stated that Pol and's

| egi slative, adm nistrative and judicial machinery effectively prevented
torture throughout the country. Yet the new material in the suppl enent was
not so categorical. Perhaps the delegation could provide further data in that
regard.

31. Par agraph 28 of the supplenment inforned the Committee that Pol and had
ratified the Council of Europe's European Convention for the Prevention of
Torture and | nhuman or Degradi ng Treatnent or Punishment, for which Pol and was
to be comended, and that at the end of June and the begi nning of July 1996,
the Council of Europe's Conmittee for the Prevention of Torture had conducted
an inspection of Polish detention and isolation centres, but the officia
report on the findings had not yet been submitted. The Committee would like
to receive a copy of those findings.

32. Lastly, could the del egation explain what the rmachinery was for
nonitoring respect for the rights of prisoners? How were prisoners
conpl aints reviewed, and with what results?

33. M. SORENSEN said he hoped that the Polish authorities would publish the
report of the European Committee for the Prevention of Torture on its visit to
Pol and. In that event, the report could be circulated to the nmenbers of the
Conmi ttee agai nst Torture.

34. Following its consideration of Poland' s initial report (CAT/C 9/ Add. 13),
the Conmittee had recomended in its report (A/49/44) that a specific training
programe on the prevention of torture should be organized for civil and
mlitary personnel, [awers and nenbers of the nedical profession. Poland' s
response to that reconmendation in paragraph 47 of its second periodic report
was not satisfactory. Noting the paramount inportance of education in
countries that were in transition to a new system he asked for nore
conprehensive informati on on how the prevention of torture was incorporated
into training progranmes.

35. He was pl eased to note that Poland had guaranteed the right of victins
of torture to redress and conpensation in conpliance with article 14 of the
Convention. Wre there any nedical rehabilitation centres in Poland or any
pl ans to establish such centres.



CAT/ C/ SR 276
page 6

36. He urged Pol and to contribute to the United Nations Voluntary Fund for
Victins of Torture.

37. M. ZUPANCI C noted that the Polish legislature was reluctant to
incorporate formal definitions into the Penal Code. However, the idea was not
to copy the definition of torture in article 1 of the Convention into the
Code, but rather to base the sanctions laid down by the Polish |egislature on
a definition that was conplex and well thought out.

38. According to article 15, neither the direct results of torture, for
exanple in the formof confessions, nor the subsequent results of such
confessions should be adnitted as evidence. It was easier to filter out

evi dence of that nature in trials by jury and it was al so essential to exclude
it fromfiles seen by the investigating nmagistrate.

39. Was it possible for persons in pre-trial detention to | odge a conpl ai nt
with the Constitutional Court? Had any detai nees been rel eased as a result of
such a conpl aint?

40. The CHAIRMVAN invited the Polish delegation to reply at the next neeting
to the various questions that had been raised.

41. The del egation of Pol and wi t hdrew.

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (agenda item 2) (continued)

42. The CHAIRMAN said he took it that the Conmittee agreed to appoint
M. CGonzal ez Pobl ete Country Rapporteur for the third periodic report of
Spain. He volunteered his own services as Alternate Country Rapporteur.

43, It was so deci ded.

Proceedi ngs of the Wirking Group on a draft optional protocol to the
Convention

44, M. SORENSEN said that the Wirking Group on a draft optional protocol to
the Convention had net for its second reading in October 1996. States parties
that ratified the proposed optional protocol would pernit on-site inspection
of places of detention. He had arranged a slide projection for the
participants at the recent session to explain the purpose of such inspections
and how they shoul d be conduct ed.

45, The slides shown to the Wirking Group were projected.

46. M. SORENSEN said that visits to places of detention should not be
announced i n advance. The inspectors should have free access in private to
all detainees and should view all roons and docunents. States such as Cuba,
China and the Syrian Arab Republic would allow visits only on the basis of
"informed consent"” but other States took the view that ratification of the
proposed optional protocol would inply informed consent. There was as yet no
agreenment in the Wirking G oup on how nuch information regardi ng possible

i nspection sites should be provided prior to a visit. However, agreenment had
been reached on the articles concerning the establishnent of a sub-conmittee
and the reconmmendations of the Conmmittee against Torture in that connection
had been foll owed. Mny States parties had advocated the inclusion of
politicians among its nmenbers but the final wording of article 4, paragraph 2,
was:

"The menbers of the Sub-Conmmittee shall be chosen from anong persons of
hi gh nmoral character, having proven professional experience in the field
of the administration of justice, in particular in crinminal |aw prison



CAT/ C/ SR 276
page 7

or police adm nistration or in the various nmedical fields relevant to
the treatnent of persons deprived of their liberty or in the field of
human rights. "

Par agraph 4 of the sane article stipulated that nenbers were to serve in their
i ndi vi dual capacity and were to be independent and inparti al

47. The Conmittee against Torture would not be involved in the election
procedure. Each State party could nonmnate up to two candi dates and the
nmenbers of the sub-commttee would be elected by secret ballot at a neeting of
States parties. Primary consideration would be given in the election to
fulfilment of the criteria set out in article 4 and due consideration to a
proper bal ance anong the fields of conpetence referred to in that article.

O her criteria were equitable geographical distribution, the representation of
different forms of civilization and | egal systens, and bal anced representation
of wormen and mnen.

48. M. BRUNI (Secretary of the Cormmittee), replying to a question by

M. CGonzal ez Poblete, said that the report of the Wrking Goup would be
submitted to the Commi ssion on Human R ghts at its next session in spring 1997
and woul d therefore be circulated to the nenbers of the Committee in time for
t he ei ghteenth session.

I nternational Conference on Torture

49, M. SORENSEN reported on the International Conference on Torture

organi zed by Amesty International in Stockholmin Cctober 1996, which he had
attended with M. Gonzal ez Poblete and the Secretary of the Conmittee. The
Conference had adopted a Plan of Action against Torture. The follow ng

par agraph on "Resources" was of particular interest to the Conmittee:

"NGOs should insist that nore funds be allocated to the grossly
under - funded human rights programres at the United Nations and regi ona

i ntergovernmental organizations. Wthin the United Nations human rights
programe, nore personnel should be allocated to bodi es and nechani sns
that combat torture, which are thensel ves under-resourced in conparison
with other parts of the programme. NGO shoul d canpaign for increased
donations to the United Nations Voluntary Fund for Victinms of Torture."

50. M. GONZALEZ POBLETE said that NGOs had been urged during the Conference
to put pressure on the authorities in States parties to make the declarations
under articles 21 and 22 of the Convention. Only one third of States parties
had done so and nobst of them were European

51. M. SORENSEN noted that States parties which had not made the

decl aration under article 22 were unlikely to ratify the draft optiona
protocol. O the 39 States parties that had nade the declaration to

date, 24 were covered by the inspection procedure of the European Conmittee
for the Prevention of Torture. The renmaining 14 included Croatia, Yugoslavia,
Monaco, New Zeal and, Australia and Canada.

The neeting rose at 1 p.m




